1	
2	
3	
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	BY-LAWS
9	
10	
11	
12	TREASURE COAST CHAPTER OF MEDICAL ASSISTANTS
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	AN AFFILIATE OF:
20	
21	FLORIDA SOCIETY OF MEDICAL ASSISTANTS
22	AMEDICAN ACCOUNTION OF MEDICAL ACCUSTANTS
23	AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF MEDICAL ASSISTANTS
24	
25	
26 27	
28	
29	
30	
31	
32 33	
34	
35	
36	
37	
38 39	
40	Adopted May 4, 2007
41	Editorially revised September 14, 2007, May 2, 2008, March 1, 2009,
42	April 2019, May 2021, April 2022, October 2023
43	

44 BY-LAWS

45 46

47 48 49

ARTICLE I - NAME

50 51 52

The name of this organization shall be: The Treasure Coast Chapter of Medical Assistants (TCCMA), an affiliate of the Florida Society of Medical Assistants (FSMA) and the American Association of Medical Assistants (AAMA). The TCCMA consists of the following counties: St. Lucie, Okeechobee, Indian River and Martin Counties.

54 55 56

53

ARTICLE II - PURPOSE

57 58

The purpose of the TCCMA is to promote the professional identity and stature of its members and the Medical Assisting profession through education and credentialing.

59 60

ARTICLE III - OBJECTIVES

61 62

- 1. Well informed, enthusiastic members committed to professionalism and the association.
- 2. Positive awareness of medical assisting as a profession and recognition of the TCCMA as its representative.
- 3. Education that prepares the medical assistant to provide competent service to employers and patients.
- 4. Certification recognized as evidence of entry level competency at current standards of the medical assisting practice.
- 5. Protection through legislation of the medical assistant's right to practice.
- 6. Qualified, competent and committed volunteer leaders.

ARTICLE IV - ORGANIZATIONAL POLICY

This organization is hereby declared to be non-profit. It is not or shall ever become a trade union or collective bargaining agency. No person otherwise qualified for membership in this organization shall be denied membership because of race, religion, sex, national origin or political affiliation. No person who participates in the activities of organizations whose purpose is to overthrow the government of the United States shall be a member of this organization.

ARTICLE V - MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1 - CLASSES

There shall be seven (7) classes of membership: ACTIVE, LIFE, SUSTAINING, ASSOCIATE, STUDENT and HONORARY. Membership in a component (local) chapter, a constituent (state) society and AAMA shall be required for all classes accept HONORARY, unless there is no constituent society and/or component chapter in the area. No other membership or quasi membership classes shall be permitted by a component or constituent society.

SECTION 2 - QUALIFICATIONS

A. ACTIVE MEMBER SHALL BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:

An Active member shall be one of the following:

- 1. A credentialed medical assistant holding current status through a National Commission for Certifying Agencies (NCCA) accredited certification program and whose credential has not been revoked as provided by the respective credentialing body.
- 2. Anyone who was an active member on December 31, 1987, and who maintains continuous active membership. (Continuous active membership shall be defined as having dues postmarked to the Executive Office by December 31 of the previous year.) The controlling time is that of sending, not that of receiving.

B. LIFE MEMBER SHALL BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:

A TCCMALIFE member shall be an active member who has had LIFE membership conferred by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Executive Board for outstanding service to the Chapter. Only one LIFE membership may be conferred and has not been revoked in any year. Nominations with supporting documentation, submitted to the Executive Council at least sixty (60) days in advance of the annual meeting of the chapter.

C. SUSTAINING MEMBER SHALL BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:

Anyone who has been an active member for at least two (2) years, who has retired from medical assisting and who has not entered into another field of employment is eligible for SUSTAINING membership. This membership shall be forfeited if not renewed annually.

D. ASSOCIATE MEMBER SHALL BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:

An Associate member shall be a medical assistant who is not yet an AAMA Certified Medical Assistant (CMA-AAMA) and who does not fall under any other category.

E. AFFILIATE MEMBER SHALL BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:

An affiliate member shall be one who is not eligible for another category of membership, but who is interested in the profession of medical assisting.

F. STUDENT MEMBER SHALL BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:

STUDENT- A Student member:

- 1. Shall be enrolled in a medical assisting program.
- 2. May choose a two-year student membership term or a one-year student membership term.
- a. After a two-year student membership term, the member is then eligible only for either associate membership or active membership (if the member meets the active membership requirements).
- b. After a one-year student membership term, the member is eligible for a second year of student membership as long as the member renews during the member's one-year student membership term. After the second-year of student membership, the member is then eligible only for either associate membership or active membership (if the member meets the active membership requirements).
- c. No member is eligible for more than a total of two consecutive years of student membership.

G. HONORARY MEMBER SHALL BE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:

Anyone who is not eligible for active membership but has made outstanding contributions to the advancement of medical assisting and/or the Treasure Coast Chapter of Medical Assistants. HONORARY membership is conferred by a two thirds (2/3) vote of the Executive Board. No more than two (2) HONORARY memberships may be conferred in any year. Nomination with supporting documentation is to be submitted to the Executive Council at least sixty (60) days in advance of the annual meeting of the chapter.

H. REVOCATION

Any member who has had their CMA-AAMA credential revoked by the Certifying Board as provided by the AAMA Certifying Board Disciplinary Standards and Procedures for CMA's (see www.aama-ntl.org will immediately lose their membership and all privileges attached thereto and shall not be allowed reinstatement, unless the revocation of the credential is rescinded by the Certifying Board. No refund of any dues amount paid will be made.

ARTICLE VI - OFFICERS

SECTION I. THE ELECTED OFFICERS OF THIS CHAPTER SHALL BE:

- A. PRESIDENT, VICE PRESIDENT, SECRETARY, TREASURER AND IMMEDIATE PAST PRESIDENT.
- B. Active, Associate or life members. Officers shall have paid their dues in full as of December 31 of the year preceding (the controlling time is that of sending, not that of receiving).
- C. Shall have served on a committee previously.
- D. They shall hold office for one (1) year or until a successor is elected or appointed.
- E. Serve a consecutive second term, but a one (1) year interval must lapse before they may again be re-elected to the same office (unless no one else runs for that office).

SECTION II - DUTIES OF OFFICERS

A. <u>DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT SHALL BE:</u>

- 1. Chief executive officer of the chapter shall serve as chair of the Executive Council and preside at all meetings of the chapter and board.
- 2. Appoint standing, special and other committees with the approval of the board; except for the following chairmen: Budget & Finance, By-Laws.
- 3. Serve as ex-officio member of all committees except the Nominating Committee
- 4. Shall countersign all warrants with the Treasurer.
- 5. To remove from office, with the approval of the Executive Board any elected/appointed officer or committee chair who within three (3) months after their election/appointment fails to perform the duties of the office or committee, or for any cause, shall become ineligible to hold office or appointment, with written notice thereof to be submitted to the officer or committee chair in question.

B. DUTIES OF THE VICE PRESIDENT:

1. To assist the President in their duties throughout the year. May assume the duties of the President in the absence of the President. May assume

the office of the President at the close of the next year's Installation meeting.

- 2. Shall be acquainted with all duties involving the President and all officers.
- 3. Shall be familiar with the duties of each chair and committee.
- 4. Shall chair or delegate the Membership Committee

C. DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY SHALL BE:

- 1. To attend all meetings of the Chapter and Executive Board; shall be responsible for having the minutes of the proceedings of each meeting recorded in books to be kept for that purpose with copies to the President.
- 2. To keep an up-to-date list of the names, addresses and professional affiliation of each member of the chapter; said list of names to be provided by the Treasurer.
 - To keep in a copy of the By-Laws and Standing Rules of the chapter.
- 4. To furnish officers, committees or members information needed by them.
- 5. Custodian of all records except those assigned to others.
- 6. To keep an accurate roll of attendance of members at meetings of the chapter.
- 7. To conduct the general correspondence of the chapter as directed by the President
- 8. To send notices of all meetings and other notices where previous notice is required.
- 9. Appointed as the historian to keep all records of the chapter's history.
- 10. To prepare a history of the chapter during the year and keep all records of the chapter's history.

D. DUTIES OF THE TREASURER SHALL BE:

- 1. To receive and have custody of all funds and securities of the chapter.
- 2. To keep full and accurate accounts of all receipts and disbursements in the books belonging to the chapter.
- 3. To deposit and credit all monies in the name of the chapter in a national bank.
- 4. To sign all warrants/countersigned by the President, for all disbursements.
- 5. To present a complete record of all transactions to members of the Budget & Finance committee, Executive Board and a monthly and annual report to the chapter.
- 6. Chair of the Budget & Finance Committee.
- 7. To notify chairmen of each committee of the amount of money budgeted for the use of that committee.
- 8. To prepare for the Nominating Committee a complete list of eligible members of nominees for the slate of Officers, Board members, and Nominating committee.

E. THE DUTIES OF THE IMMEDIATE PAST PRESIDENT SHALL BE:

- 1. To act as Chair of the By-Laws Committee.
- 2. To act as Chair of the Nominating Committee.
- 3. To act as Parliamentarian and serve as advisor to the points of Parliamentary Procedure to the President and Executive Board.

.

3.

All officers shall perform the duties <u>prescribed</u> in the adopted text on Parliamentary Law in addition to those specified by the By-Laws and Standing Rules of the chapter. They shall deliver to their successors all material pertaining to their office within fifteen (15) days following installation.

SECTION 3 - VACANCIES IN OFFICE

If any office other than that of the President shall become vacant, the remaining members of the Executive Board shall recommend a successor to the vote of the membership to serve the unexpired term.

SECTION 4 - NOMINATIONS AND ELECTIONS

- A. Election of Officers shall be held at the annual meeting.
- B. <u>NOMINATING COMMITTEE</u> shall consist of the Immediate Past President and two (2) members of the chapter. This committee shall present at the next annual meeting a slate consisting of at least one (1) nominee for each office; at least one (1) nominee for each Board member; two (2) nominees for the nominating committee
- C. NOMINATIONS MAY ALSO BE MADE FROM THE FLOOR. After nominations are closed, the election shall be conducted by ballot. The nominating committee shall prepare and distribute ballots for voting. The list of eligible nominees shall be obtained from the Treasurer.
- D. The committees of Treasure Coast Chapter may be:

Bylaws/Policies and Procedure Budget & Finance Education/Program Marketing Membership Public Policy Ways and Means

E. Committees of TCCMA shall be active, sustaining, associate, life or student members.

ARTICLE VII - MEETINGS

- A. Regular meetings will be held at such time and place as designated by the chapter and at the discretion of the Executive Board.
- B. The annual meeting will be held in April. Election of officers and nominating committee members shall take place at this meeting.
- C. Special meetings of the chapter may be called at any time by the President with the approval of the Executive Board and shall be called by the President upon request made by two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the Board, or one-third (1/3) of the active membership of the chapter. The secretary shall give no less than three (3) days notice prior to the date thereof.
- D. At all meetings of the membership a quorum shall constitute a majority of the members present.
- E. Notwithstanding any other provision of these bylaws, the following may be handled by the Executive Council electronically:
 - 1. Executive Council Meetings
 - 2. Annual Meeting

- 3. Voting
- 4. CEU opportunities

ARTICLE VIII- EXECUTIVE BOARD

SECTION 1

The Executive Board shall consist of the elected officers, the Immediate past president and committee chairs. Each Board member shall be an active and associate member in good standing and shall be elected at the same time and in the same manner in which the officers are elected at the annual meeting of the chapter and prior to the annual meeting of the FSMA.

SECTION 2 - GOVERNMENT

The government of this chapter shall be vested in the Executive Board. The Executive Board shall have general control of the purposes and the activities between regular and special meetings of the chapter. The duties of the Executive Board shall be:

- A. To recommend a member to fill a vacancy on the Nominating Committee.
- B. To approve appointments by the President.
- C. To approve committee action.
- D. To make recommendations to the membership.
- E. To recommend a member to fill vacancies in elective offices, except that of the President.

SECTION 3 - MEETINGS OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

- A. The Executive Board may meet at such time and place as designated by the chapter and at the discretion of the Executive Board.
- B. At all meetings of the Executive Board, one-third (1/3) of the total members present and voting shall constitute a quorum.

ARTICLE IX-FINANCES/FISCAL YEAR/ DUES

SECTION 1-Finances/Fiscal Year

- A. All monies received as donations, ways and means or membership shall be placed in an operating fund unless the donation should stipulate otherwise.
- B. The members shall approve a budget for the ensuing year
- C. The fiscal year for the Treasure Coast Chapter shall be June 1 of one year through May 31 of the following year.

SECTION 2-DUES

- A. Dues shall become and payable November 1 and shall be delinquent if not postmarked or submitted electronically to the AAMA Executive Office by December 31st for each year. (Controlling time is that of sending, not receiving).
- B. Dues for new members joining after September 1st shall be credited to the following year.
- C. To serve as a delegate or alternate to AAMA, a member's dues shall be postmarked or submitted electronically to the AAMA Executive Office by December 31st for each year. (Controlling time is that of sending, not receiving).

- D. Delegates and Alternates to AAMA shall be elected to serve from the opening of the House of Delegates for the year elected until the next convening of the House of Delegates.
- E. Delegates and Alternates shall be Active or AAMA National Life members hose membership has not been revoked, as delineated in Article VI. Section 4.
- F. The TCCMA shall offer reciprocity to members transferring membership from a component chapter. The transferring member shall be exempt from paying dues until the November 1st due date.
- G. Membership belongs to the individual and shall be non-transferable.

ARTICLE X- DISSOLUTION

In the event of dissolution of this chapter, within 10 days, the Executive Board shall notify FSMA. At a meeting called for the purpose of dissolution, TCCMA members may after payment of all liabilities vote to distribute any assets to a medical or charitable institution, or FSMA may take responsibility of the chapter funds until the chapter can be reorganized. FSMA will notify AAMA membership department that the chapter has become inactive.

ARTICLE XI- PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

The rules contained in "Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised" shall govern the chapter in cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with the Bylaws.

ARTICLE XII- AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws may be amended at the Annual Meeting of the chapter.

The word "she", "her", and "herself" whenever used in these Bylaws shall be deemed to include the male gender.